
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Rob Polhill (Chairman) Labour 

Councillor Ron Hignett Labour 

Councillor Eddie Jones Labour 

Councillor John Stockton Labour 

Councillor Mike Wharton Labour 

 
 
 
Please contact Lynn Derbyshire on 0151 511 7975 or e-mail 
lynn.derbyshire@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Board is on Thursday, 29 November 2012 
 

Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
 
Thursday, 20 September 2012 3.00 p.m. 
Or at the Rise of Executive Board 
The Board Room - Municipal Building, 
Widnes 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Disclosable Interest 
which they have in any item of business on the agenda, no later 
than when that item is reached or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent and, with Disclosable Pecuniary interests, to 
leave the meeting during any discussion or voting on the item. 
 
 

 
 

3. MERSEY GATEWAY BRIDGE - PROCUREMENT PROGRESS 
 

1 - 6 

4. SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
AND THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO 
INFORMATION) ACT 1985  

  

 



 In this case the Board has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public and, in view of the nature of the business 
to be transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that under 
Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
having been satisfied that in all the circumstances of the 
case the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 : 
Regulation 6 
 
Notice is hereby given that under Regulation 6 of the above, 
Councillor John Gerrard, as Chair of the Environment and Urban 
Renewal Policy and Performance Board, has agreed to the 
following item of business being considered in Part II, as the 
item of business is considered urgent and cannot reasonably be 
deferred for the reason(s) stated below: 
 
Reason: 
Deferral would cause unnecessary delay in the preparatory work 
connected with the building of the Mersey Gateway bridge. 
 
 

 
 

5. GOVERNANCE, OCIP PROCUREMENT AND ADVANCE 
WORKS 

 

7 - 22 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO:  Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
 
DATE:  20th September 2012 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive 
 
PORTFOLIO: Leader 
 
SUBJECT: Mersey Gateway Bridge – Procurement 

Progress 
 
WARDS: All 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report advises members of the progress of the Mersey Gateway 

procurement process. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: no decisions are required but the Mersey 

Gateway Executive Board are invited to note:- 
 
2.1 That the Competitive Dialogue process is progressing to programme and 

that all Bidders are engaged with the process and continue to develop 
their draft Final Submissions. 
  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Since the last report to the Mersey Gateway Executive Board, a 

significant number of Dialogue Meetings (split between Technical and 

Commercial elements) have taken place (supported by Bidder 

Submissions made in advance); matters covered included the following:  

 Several meetings with each Bidder on a range of technical matters such 

as: 

• Proposals on dealing with various structures; 

• Departures from Standard; 

• Asset Management; 

• Conceptual designs; 

• Drainage; 

• Landscaping; 

• Traffic management; 

• Contamination and remediation; 

• Construction methods. 

 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Several meetings with each Bidder on a range of commercial matters 

such as: 

• Revenue Collection Service and Revenue Collection Business Plan; 

• Proposals on the ways in which the bidders will finance the project; 

• Commentary on the draft contracts - Project Agreement (PA) and 

Demand Management Participation Agreement (DMPA); 

• Proposals on how bidders will deal with contamination; 

• Proposals on approach to insurance; 

• Employment and Skills Delivery Plans. 

3.2 In order to support the dialogue meetings, the Project Team (as part of 

the Invitation to Participate in Dialogue) requested a number of 

submissions to be provided by bidders over the course of the dialogue 

phase.  To date, the Team have received over 180 submissions from 

the three main bidders which have all needed to be reviewed.  In 

addition, nearly 500 queries have been received which have all needed 

responses.  Since the start of the dialogue process, a further 1,000 

documents have been sourced and provided to bidders via 18 

dataroom updates.  This brings the total number of documents 

contained within the dataroom to 4,670.  Please see Appendix 1 for 

further details on these statistics. 

3.3 The key milestones were reported to the Board at the last meeting. The 

Project Team remain on target to deliver Financial Close in the autumn 

of 2013. 

3.4 Bidders have also proactively engaged with the Halton Employment 

Partnership in connection with developing their plans for the community 

engagement and social responsibility requirements. The HEP has been 

impressed with these Bidders’ understanding of the various initiatives 

and the commitment to engagement. These Bidders are also exploring 

the possibility of various supply chain activities being provided by local 

businesses (with the assistance of the development and investment 

HEP partners). 

3.5 In parallel to the Dialogue Meetings, the land acquisition programme 

continues to ensure the delivery of the required land, or necessary 

rights that the Project Company needs in order to construct the Mersey 

Gateway. The programme is on schedule, and continues to acquire 

land both through agreement and by exercising of its Compulsory 

Purchase powers through the serving of General Vesting Declarations, 

of which five have been made to date. Negotiations continue with a 

number of affected parties, with the ability to use Compulsory Purchase 

powers should it be necessary. A significant number of affected 

businesses have now identified relocation premises and the team are 

Page 2



working with them to ensure they have relocated and vacated their 

existing premises by April 2013 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The project is a key priority for the Council which will deliver benefits 

locally and across the wider region. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 All substantive implications are reported above and in the report annex. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all. 
 

6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

Over 500 construction jobs will be required for MG and matters are in 
hand designed to ensure the local community has access to these job 
opportunities.  In the longer term, several thousand jobs are forecast to 
be created in the sub-region due to the wider economic impact of the 
project. 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all, including improved cycling 
and walking facilities. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

The project will produce road safety benefits for road users including 
improved cycling and walking facilities. 

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

Mersey Gateway Project is a priority project in the Urban Renewal 
Programme. 
 

7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
The project structure supported by the proposed delegation and decision 
authority will reduce the risk of delay and improve the quality of the 
project control. A full risk register is maintain as art of the project 
management system. 

 

Page 3



8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all. 

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
9.1 None under the Meaning of the Act. 
 
 

Page 4



Mersey Gateway Bridge Project - Process Team Statistics 31 August 2012

Queries - Total

209 284 493
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

O
p
e
n
 Q

u
e
ri
e
s

C
o
n
fid

e
n
tia

l Q
u
e
ri
e
s

Q
u
e
ri
e
s 

T
o
ta

l

Query Responses & Response Time

9% 93%

27%

64%

Queries not yet responded to (being processed)

Responded to in over 10 business days

Responded to within 10 business days

Queries and Responses by Week

0

10

20

30

40

50

30
/0

3/
20

12

06
/0

4/
20

12

13
/0

4/
20

12

20
/0

4/
20

12

27
/0

4/
20

12

04
/0

5/
20

12

11
/0

5/
20

12

18
/0

5/
20

12

25
/0

5/
20

12

01
/0

6/
20

12

08
/0

6/
20

12

15
/0

6/
20

12

22
/0

6/
20

12

29
/0

6/
20

12

06
/0

7/
20

12

13
/0

7/
20

12

20
/0

7/
20

12

27
/0

7/
20

12

03
/0

8/
20

12

10
/0

8/
20

12

17
/0

8/
20

12

24
/0

8/
20

12

31
/0

8/
20

12

07
/0

9/
20

12

14
/0

9/
20

12

21
/0

9/
20

12

28
/0

9/
20

12

05
/1

0/
20

12

12
/1

0/
20

12

19
/1

0/
20

12

26
/1

0/
20

12

02
/1

1/
20

12

09
/1

1/
20

12

D
ra

ft 
Fin

al
 T

en
de

r (
16

 N
ov

)

Week ending

Queries Responses

Total Number of Queries & Responses

0

100

200

300

400

500

30
/0

3/
20

12

06
/0

4/
20

12

13
/0

4/
20

12

20
/0

4/
20

12

27
/0

4/
20

12

04
/0

5/
20

12

11
/0

5/
20

12

18
/0

5/
20

12

25
/0

5/
20

12

01
/0

6/
20

12

08
/0

6/
20

12

15
/0

6/
20

12

22
/0

6/
20

12

29
/0

6/
20

12

06
/0

7/
20

12

13
/0

7/
20

12

20
/0

7/
20

12

27
/0

7/
20

12

03
/0

8/
20

12

10
/0

8/
20

12

17
/0

8/
20

12

24
/0

8/
20

12

31
/0

8/
20

12

07
/0

9/
20

12

14
/0

9/
20

12

21
/0

9/
20

12

28
/0

9/
20

12

05
/1

0/
20

12

12
/1

0/
20

12

19
/1

0/
20

12

26
/1

0/
20

12

02
/1

1/
20

12

09
/1

1/
20

12

D
ra

ft 
Fin

al
 T

en
de

r  
(1

6 
N
ov

)

Week ending
Queries

Responses

Queries by Category

56 52 39 36 26 23 21 18 18 16 16 14 14 13 10 8 8 8 8 7 7 7 6 6 5 5 5 4 4 3 2 2 1 1 1 1 121
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

D
ia
lo
gu

e 
M

ee
tin

gs

Thi
rd

 P
ar

ty
 L

ia
is
on

H
ig
hw

ay
s 
(in

cl
. W

id
ne

s 
di
ve

rs
io
n)

M
ai
n 

Brid
ge

Tra
ffi
c 
M

od
el

Exi
st
in
g 

C
iv
ils

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e

G
eo

te
ch

ni
cs

Stru
ct
ur

es

La
nd

Sub
m

is
si
on

s

Add
iti
on

al
 D

at
a

Fin
an

ce

Le
ga

l D
M

PA

Le
ga

l P
A

Env
iro

nm
en

t

Adv
an

ce
 W

or
ks

Adm
in
is
tra

tio
n

O
pe

ra
tio

n 
& M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (S

er
vi
ce

)

Site
 V

is
its

Tol
lin

g

Pay
m

en
t M

ec
h 

- G
en

er
al

PC
S

Sta
tu

to
ry

 &
 O

th
er

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 
D
at

a

Pay
m

en
t M

ec
h 

- J
ou

rn
ey

 ti
m

e 

Tra
ffi
c 
& R

ev
en

ue
 F

or
ec

as
ts

C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 L

an
d

D
at

ar
oo

m

N
et

w
or

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

In
su

ra
nc

e

Pla
nn

in
g

Tra
ffi
c 
Tec

hn
ol
og

y

Ill
us

tra
tiv

e 
D
es

ig
n

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
s

Ass
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

C
on

tra
ct
/A

gr
ee

m
en

t

D
ep

ar
tu

re
s

Pay
m

en
t M

ec
h 

- P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, l
...

Per
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

Page 5



Dataroom Update Items per Update

81 3 45 22 79 172 20 27 41 52 30 21 30 30 104 190 33
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

U
pd

at
e 

1 
(2

8/
03

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

2 
(0

4/
04

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

3 
(1

3/
04

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

4 
(1

8/
04

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

5 
(2

5/
04

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

6 
(2

7/
04

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

7 
(0

2/
05

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

8 
(0

9/
05

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

9 
(2

3/
05

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

10
 (3

0/
05

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

11
 (1

3/
06

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

12
 (2

0/
06

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

13
 (2

8/
06

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

14
 (0

4/
07

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

15
 (1

8/
07

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

16
 (0

2/
08

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

17
 (1

5/
08

/2
01

2)

U
pd

at
e 

18

U
pd

at
e 

19

U
pd

at
e 

20

U
pd

at
e 

21

Information Circulars & Confidential Bidder 

Notices

42 100
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
irc

ul
ar

s

C
on

f N
ot

ic
es

Total Number of Dialogue Period Bidder Submissions Received

0

50

100

150

200

30
/0

3/
20

12

06
/0

4/
20

12

13
/0

4/
20

12

20
/0

4/
20

12

27
/0

4/
20

12

04
/0

5/
20

12

11
/0

5/
20

12

18
/0

5/
20

12

25
/0

5/
20

12

01
/0

6/
20

12

08
/0

6/
20

12

15
/0

6/
20

12

22
/0

6/
20

12

29
/0

6/
20

12

06
/0

7/
20

12

13
/0

7/
20

12

20
/0

7/
20

12

27
/0

7/
20

12

03
/0

8/
20

12

10
/0

8/
20

12

17
/0

8/
20

12

24
/0

8/
20

12

31
/0

8/
20

12

07
/0

9/
20

12

14
/0

9/
20

12

21
/0

9/
20

12

28
/0

9/
20

12

05
/1

0/
20

12

12
/1

0/
20

12

19
/1

0/
20

12

26
/1

0/
20

12

02
/1

1/
20

12

09
/1

1/
20

12

D
ra

ft 
Fin

al
 T

en
de

r  
(1

6 
N
ov

)

Page 6



Agenda Item 5 Page 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Mersey Gateway Bridge - Procurement Progress
	MG_ProcessTeam_Statistics_20120831_CLEAN

	5 Governance, OCIP Procurement and Advance Works

